1: 12: 59 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

Thonpson

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
FOURTH SPECI AL SESSI ON
June 18, 2016
1:12 p. m

called the House Finance Committee

nmeeting to order at 1:12 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Br odi e Ander son
Deputy Conmm ssi oner,
Assi st ant

Boucher,
Cori MIIs,
Representative
Representati ve
Seat on;

Vasquez;

Representative Charisse Mllett;
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon.

Mar k Neuman, Co- Chair

St eve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

Lynn Gattis

David Guttenberg
Scott Kawasaki
Cat hy Munoz
Lance Pruitt
Tamm e W1 son

Staff, Representative Steve Thonpson; John
Departnent of Adm nistration;
Attorney Ceneral, Departnent of Law,
Lora Reinbold; Representative M ke Chenault;
Gabrielle LeDoux; Representati ve Pau

Representative Liz

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Joan W/ kerson

Law, Jake

Enpl oyees Associ ati on,

SUMVARY

House Fi nance Committee 1

Assi stant Attorney GCeneral, Departnent of
Metcal fe, Executive Director, Public Safety
Anchor age.

06/18/16 1:12 P.M



HB 4002 I NS. FOR DEPENDS. OF DECEASED FI RE/ POLI CE

CSHB 4002(FIN) was REPORTED out of conmittee with
a "do pass" recomendation and wth one new
forthcom ng fiscal i npact not e from the
Departnment of Administration and one previously
publ i shed zero fiscal note: FN1 (ADM .

#hb4002
HOUSE BI LL NO. 4002

"An Act relating to mmjor nedical insurance coverage
under the Public Enployees' Retirenent System of
Alaska for certain surviving spouses and dependent
children of peace officers and firefighters; and
providing for an effective date."

1: 13: 33 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson di scussed the neeting agenda.

Co-Chair Neuman MOVED to ADOPT the proposed conmttee
substitute for HB 4002, Wor k Dr af t 29- GH2430\H
(Wal | ace/ Wayne, 6/17/16). There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was
so order ed.

BRODI E ANDERSON, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE STEVE THOWPSON,
expl ai ned the changes in the Cormittee Substitute. The bill
contained only one change on page 4, lines 16 through 19.
The change limted the benefits for dependent children to
ten years; and limted the benefits for surviving spouses
to ten years or to the point of remarriage.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that Representative M ke Chenault
was present in the audi ence.

Representative GQuttenberg asked about the change to the
| egislation. He queried the ramfications of the changes in
the conmmttee substitute.

JOHN BOUCHER, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF
ADM NI STRATI ON, explained that the change would limt
duration of benefits to a maxi numten years.

1:16: 52 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Representative QGuttenberg surmsed that, previously, the
surviving spouse was entitled to nore benefits than
outlined in the provision.

M. Boucher replied that an individual's circunstances
outlined the outcone. He shared that a Tier Il or Tier III
enpl oyee would be required to pay for nedical care for a
period of tinme; for instance if the death occurred between
year 20 and 25 of service. He remarked that, in general,
the provision wuld place a I|imt ten years on the
particul ar benefit.

Representative GQuttenberg noted that there could be a
dependent child who was an infant, so the benefits would
not carry until they were 18-years-old. He queried the
reason for the 10-year |imt, rather than what it would be
shoul d that person retire normally.

M. Boucher could not speak to the reason for the change in
the legislation. He deferred the question to another party.

Representative Gara remarked that the fiscal note started
at $175,000 and increased to $220,000 in the out years. He
felt that the fiscal note reflected the best estimate of
the cost of the original bill. He queried the reason for
the 10-year limt, and wondered whether the adm nistration
proposed the limt.

M. Boucher answered that it had not been an anendnent put
forward by the adm nistration. He assunmed it was an attenpt
to limt costs of the benefit and Iimt the duration of the
benefit.

Representative Gara stated that one of his concerns was
that if a trooper or firefighter died in the line of duty
and a one-year-old child only received benefits until they
were 11 or 12. He did not support that idea. He queried the
ci rcunstances regarding typical retirenent, wthout death,
that would allow for benefits beyond ten years.

M. Boucher replied that a Tier | peace officer or fire
fighter died; or an individual who was |ess than ten years
from retirenent died; they would be given benefits as a
refl ection of accunul ated service.

1: 20: 40 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson asked Co-Chair Neuman to provide sone
clarification.

Co- Chair Neunman wondered whether the bill allowed for the
child to receive the insurance until adulthood. M. Boucher
answered that wunder the provision the benefit would be
di scontinued after 10 years. He shared that currently, the
i ndi vidual s did not receive any nedical care benefits.

Representative Gara spoke about Tier | enployees who had
died in the line of duty in a period that was ten years
prior to retirenent, and surm sed that the dependents woul d
be entitled to coverage.

M. Boucher answered that Tier | was covered at any age. He

explained Tiers Il and I1ll had to wait for retirenent
eligibility in order to have access to the systempaid ful
nedi cal benefits. He furthered that Tiers Il and Ill nay be

required to pay a prem um

Representative Gara queried the circunstances that entitle
dependents and spouses to health benefits.

M. Boucher consulted his notes, because it was a conplex
issue. He stated that current Tier | enployees received
premumfree nedical in the event of an occupational death.
He furthered that Tier Il and Il1l enployees with 20 years
or less service had access to the system but nust pay a
premum He explained that after the Tier Il and Il
enpl oyees reached retirenent age, which is age 60 or 25
years of accunmulated service, they would receive premum
free medical care. He furthered that in order to have
access to the system at 100 percent premum paid, Tier 1V
enpl oyees nust have at |east 25 years of service. He stated
that once one becanme Medicare age eligible or accunulate
enough service, the state wuld participate at the
designated rate depending upon service. He stated that,
typically, the individual would pay 30 percent of the total
premum He sunmmarized that there were different terns for
the different tiers.

Representative Gara expressed concern with the provision.

1: 24: 18 PM

Co- Chair Neuman asked whether the enployees currently had
access to purchasing their own life insurance.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 06/18/16 1:12 P. M



M . Boucher asked for clarification.

Co- Chair Neurman wondered whether the enployees had access
to insurance policies that would cover their spouses,
should they be injured in the line of duty.

M. Boucher replied that many state enployees and those
participating in the state's voluntary benefit prograns had
access to a |life insurance premum He could not speak
categorically across all the occupations in the state.

Co- Chair Neunman asked if the organizations or unions had
the ability to develop a benefit package, which allowed for
nmenbers to pay toward the benefit package to cover their
own. M. Boucher answered that he imagined a union could
have that capability.

Co- Chair Neuman spoke to the cost. He thought it could be
as low as $4 or $5 per nonth. He queried the cost estinate.

M. Boucher replied that the cost depended on the benefit.
He shared that a term life policy may have a reasonable
prem um of $4 or $5 per nonth. He imagined that a prem um
may be higher for a longer duration of receiving benefits.
He remarked that there were many factors that would inpact
the cost of the prem um

Co-Chair Neuman wondered whether M. Boucher had the
ability to negotiate the premum cost with the unions and
their contracts. M. Boucher responded that he negotiated
with some unions covered by the bill. He relayed that he
woul d negotiate wth t he Publ i c Safety Enpl oyees
Associ ation Union, which covered the Al aska State Troopers.

Co- Chair Neuman wondered whether the Al aska State Troopers
could buy into a policy. M. Boucher answered in the
affirmative.

Representative Wl son queried the age at which the benefits
woul d cease. M. Boucher answered that the maxi mum age for
dependent children was 23 in the bill. He stated that after
the age of 19, that child nust continue in higher
educati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Representative WIson queried the legality of t he
retroactivity portion of the bill. M. Boucher deferred to
Ms. W kerson.

JOAN W LKERSON, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF
LAW (via teleconference), believed the question arose from
the Affordable Care Act (ACA). She remarked that the usua

age for coverage was age 26. She shared that the state's
present active enployee plan covered enployees' dependents
up to age 26. The statute was witten to provide a benefit
pursuant to the Retiree Medical Plan (RW), which was
exenpt from ACA. The RWP covered up to age 19, or to age 23
for a child that was enrolled in full-tinme education.

Representative WIlson noted that the bill was retroactive
to 2013, in order to cover troopers who were killed in the
line of duty. She wondered whether there would be an issue
for those not covered before 2013.

Ms. WI kerson replied that the Departnent of Law (DCOL) felt
that there may be |egal problens, should the retroactivity
be noved beyond 2013.

Representative WIson asked for verification that there
would not be legal problens with the specific date that
included only sone people. Ms. WIkerson replied that the
provision would not create a |egal problem because they
were creating a new benefit. She remarked that an amendnent
to an existing benefit nmay result in a |legal issue.

Vice-Chair Saddler queried the risk of lawsuits or other
legal action from Public Enployees’ Retirement System
(PERS) enpl oyees who would not be covered by the bill, who
have an occupational death with no access to the health
benefits for their dependents and survivors.

1: 31: 50 PM

Ms. W/ kerson answered that there was always a risk that
someone may sue the state. She remarked that the police and
firefighter group was separately recognized since the
inception of PERS. She remarked that there were different
approval rates and contribution rates. She did not believe
that the provision would create a risk of litigation by
recogni zing a speci al benefit for the specific group.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Vice-Chair Saddler remarked that there was a consideration
of offering substantial benefits in the case of an unlikely
and horrible occurrence. He queried the range of existing
benefits available to the survivors and dependents of the
victinms of occupational death. He specifically wondered if
there were |ife insurance benefits; accidental death and
di snmenberment benefits; tuition assistance; or any other
benefits.

M. Boucher replied that there were other benefits
associated with an occupational death. He shared that there
was wage replacenent, which was either 40 percent or 50
percent of the salary. He remarked that there nay be a |unp
sum paynent associated wth possible accidental death
i nsurance. He stated that there could be other benefits if
the enpl oyee participated in a voluntary insurance policy.
He shared that there may be other benefits that he could
not recall.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked whether an enployee had to pay for
wage replacenent, or was it included in a state paid
benefit. M. Boucher replied that the wage replacenent was
an occupational death benefit for all PERS enpl oyees.

Vice-Chair Saddler surmsed that a spouse or dependent
woul d receive 40 percent and 50 percent of the victins
base pay. M. Boucher replied in the affirmative. He
expl ained that the benefit applied to all PERS enpl oyees.

Vice-Chair Saddler queried the tinme duration of the
benefit. M. Boucher replied that that the benefit would be
in place through the duration of that enployee's projected
career until normal retirenent age. The enpl oyee would then
receive a retirenent benefit at the point of normal
retirement age.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler wondered whether the accidental death
and di snenber nent benefit was an el ective benefit. He al so
queried the anount of the benefit.

M. Boucher replied that the accidental death and
di smenberment benefit was a voluntary benefit. Therefore,
the benefit was dependent on the level of coverage. He
noted that the state recently offered a voluntary benefit
package for those who participated in the supplenental
benefit system which was a term |life insurance policy. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



remarked that the policy had prem uns based upon age and
t he amount of i nsured noney.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler queried the size of the anpbunts of the
benefit. He remarked that he had seen personal policies,
which were many tines his salary at a low cost at a |ow
risk. M. Boucher answered that the benefit anpbunts ranged
from $48,000 to $300,000. He believed that at the tine of
the policy enactnent, the higher Iimt was closer to
$100, 000.

Vice-Chair Saddler queried the anmount range for the
acci dental death and di snmenbernent policy.

M. Boucher believed that the accidental death and
di smenbernent policy amunt was at $48,000. He furthered
that life insurance was a hi gher anount.

Vice-Chair Saddler queried the limt for |ife insurance
policies. M. Boucher answered that currently it was
$300, 000, but that anpbunt was relatively new devel opnent.
He expl ained that until 2013 $100,000 was the limt.

Vice-Chair Saddler felt that there was a range of benefits
that were renunerative for the decedent's survivors and
beneficiaries, even w thout the additional benefit. \V/ge
Boucher replied that there were a range of other voluntary
benefits.

Co- Chair Thonpson stressed that those referenced benefits
were voluntary. M. Boucher agreed, and pointed out that
sonme benefits were paid and others were part of the
conpensati on package.

1: 38: 02 PM

Representative Gara wondered why all spouses and children
of the troopers and firefighters who were killed in the
line of duty were not treated equitably. He asked why the
bill only extended health insurance to soneone who was a
survivor of soneone killed in the line of duty after 2013;
rat her than anot her year.

Co- Chai r Neuman replied that the reason for t he
specification was because of cost. He noted that the state
was |looking at a $3.5 billion deficit. He remarked that
that the legislation my need to be reexamned in ten

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



years. He added that there may al so be adjustnents through
negoti ations in union contracts.

Representative Gara requested testinmony from the state
troopers. He stressed that a life ending in 2012 was as
inportant as a life ending in 2013.

Co-Chair Neuman wondered if prior governors had provided
assistance to the famlies of those who had died in the
line of duty prior to 2013. M. Boucher did not believe so.
He woul d have to review the records.

Co-Chair Neuman asked specifically about Alaska State
Troopers, and wondered whether those famlies were covered.
M . Boucher agreed to provide the information.

Representative Quttenberg noted that the state troopers and
firefighters as a specific category of state enployee. He
wondered what would occur if they were divided, or adding
simlar benefits to another group.

M. Boucher replied that it was not unprecedented to change
benefits when creating a new benefit structure. He stressed
that it was not unprecedented to change the offered
benefits to those individuals who were participating after
the date of change. He remarked that the structure would be
offered to all PERS enployees, in order to maintain the
integrity of the benefit in the context of the overall
police and fire group.

1:44:12 PM

Representative QGuttenberg queried the legal ramfications
for separating the police and fire group from the PERS
enpl oyees. M. Boucher deferred to DOL.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked that Ms. W/ kerson respond to sone
guesti ons.

Ms. W kerson asked for a repeat of the question.

Representative GQGuttenberg queried the legal danger of
offering different benefits to people in one group; he also
queried the legal ramfications of mxing other singular
occupations in other groups into the group. He wondered if
there had been any rulings or lawsuits related to those
i ssues.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Ms. Wl kerson replied that singling out a single group in a
pension group to receive special benefits was wong. She
stressed that private industry pensions were through
Enpl oyee Retirenment Incone Security Act (ERI SA) prohibited
the limting of benefits for nmenbers in the sanme pension.
She remarked that ERISA did not apply to the governnenta
pl an, therefore there were no federal |aw prohibitions. She
stated that the groups were divided by "Police and Fire"
and "All OQhers."” The groups were coded with those nanmes in
the PERS software system She stated that mmintaining the
two groups separately provided equanimty with how to award
t he benefits.

Co-Chair Thonpson recalled that police and fire had
different benefits and retirement |ength of service, which
di stinguished them as a separate group. M. WIKkerson
answered in the affirmative.

Co- Chair Thonpson stated that if the legislature tried to
bring another group under the bill it could bring |Iegal
questions. Ms. Wl kerson replied in the affirmative.

Representative Guttenberg asked what would happen if the
group was divided. He provided a scenario of dividing the
benefit to either troopers or firefighters only. He
wondered if there was equal protection.

Ms. W/l kerson replied that the issue was nore related to
the funding of the entire pension system She shared that
the current bill applied to all police and fire that were
menbers of PERS. She stated a division within a group would
create the question of how to separate out a certain nunber
of enpl oyees receiving a benefit.

1:49: 03 PM

M. Boucher furthered that currently the benefit was
structured by all enployers paying a contribution rate to
receive the benefit. He explained that creating a benefit
structure that was not ubiquitous across the entire class
would require creating individual rate structures for each
of the benefits. He shared that benefit enhancenents or
carve outs would result in portability of benefits, because
an individual may nove from one PERS enployer to another.
He stated that it would be difficult for the D vision of
Retirement and Benefits to admnister, because there would

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



be a separate class within the group that required creation
of a rate for the particular benefit. He stated that a very

small pool may introduce volatility for the particular
enpl oyers that belong to the benefit, because insurance
policies depended on the "law of large nunbers.” He

stressed that he recomended not subdividing the group, if
the retirenent system was used as the vehicle to deliver
nmedi cal benefits. He remarked that wusing a different
vehicle to deliver nedical benefits my be better. He that
it was the least risky to provide the benefits within the
confines of the existing groups.

Co- Chair Thonpson recalled Representative Gara's question
about why 2013 was chosen. He surm sed that choosing a year
earlier than 2013 would result in |egal problens.

Ms. Wl kerson replied in the affirmative.

Representative Gara referred to a chart that included
police officers who had died in the line of duty [no title
from the Department of Administration dated June 1, 2016
(copy on file)]. He noted that there was a police officer
in Hoonah who was shot while on duty, and that police
officer had a surviving child. He remarked that, according
to the handout, that child had no nedical coverage. He
wondered why that child would not be covered, when funds
were available. He queried the |egal problens for covering
that police officer's child.

Ms. Wl kerson did not know the answer to the question - she
did not have the chart in front of her. She did not know
whet her the Hoonah Police Departnent was a contributing
PERS partici pant. She deferred to M. Boucher.

Representative Gara felt that there would be no |ega
problems with providing coverage for dependents of soneone
who died in 2010 as opposed to 2013.

Ms. WI kerson wondered if Representative Gara was referring
to "dropping the bill."

Representative Gara felt that the constitution would allow
the protection of a child whose parent died in the line of
duty in 2010, as it would allow the protection of a child
whose parent died in the line of duty in 2013.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Ms. WIlkerson replied that her concern was not of a
constitutional nature.

Representative Gara wanted to protect as nmany people as
possi ble. He wondered if there was any protection offered
to the child of the police officer who had been shot in
Hoonah.

M. Boucher replied that the individual wuld not be
covered by the legislation. The legislation would need an
amendnent to go retroactively for a | onger period.

Representative Gara wondered whether the famly in Hoonah
had any nedical or pension benefit. M. Boucher replied
that he did not know the circunstances of that famly. He
felt that the famly may be depending on the retroactive
dat e.

Representative Gara surmsed that the bill would cover the
person, should the bill have a 2010 retroactive date. M.
Boucher did not understand the question.

Representative Gara restated his question.

M. Boucher responded in the affirmative. He remarked that
there were challenges in retroactively paying six or nore
years of health clains. He felt that it would be
problematic to admnister. He stressed that, generally,
health care systenms did not pay retroactive benefits to
t hat degree.

1:57:28 PM

Vi ce- Chair Saddl er understood that the essential purpose of
the bill was to take care of survivors and dependents of
public service officials who died in the line of duty

protecting Alaskans. He felt that it was a positive
purpose. He noted that sonme were "outraged" about why the
state did not already provide the benefits. He noted that
there were existing benefits such as life insurance, which
could pay between $50,000 and $300,000 in a lunp sum at
deat h; accidental death and di smenbernent insurance, which
could pay a lunmp sum of $50,000 to $300,000; and, at no
cost to the spouses, they would receive between 40 and 50
percent of their deceased spouse's salary until the point
of retirenent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 06/18/16 1:12 P. M



M. Boucher agreed, but renmarked that he did not have a
conplete inventory of all the benefits.

Vice-Chair Saddler noted that there were sone bills to
benefit mlitary veterans' survivors, which included free
tuition at the University of Alaska. He wondered whether
there were such tuition benefits for the dependents in the
| egi sl ati on.

M. Boucher replied not that he was aware of any benefits
provided by the Dvision of Retirement and Benefits. He
remarked that there could be benefits through other
organi zations or associations. He remarked that the
University of Alaska may provide that type of benefit.

Vice-Chair Saddler stressed that the legislature was not
"heartless"” in taking care of the dependents, decedents,
and survivors.

Representative WIson queried the point at which the ten
years woul d begi n.

M. Boucher replied that at the point of the onset of the
benefit would begin the ten years of nedical care
i nsurance. He assuned that the retroactive limt would
provide for five or six years, plus forward. He assuned
that the intent would be ten years from the onset of the
original benefit, therefore 2013 to 2023, etcetera.

Representative WIson clarified her question. She remarked
that the state would owe all the nedical costs from 2013 to
2016, and then remain a regular insurance policy. She had
originally understood the limt to only pertain to the ten
year |limt beginning at the effective date, therefore 2016
to 2026. She felt that the two assunptions could not be
correct.

Co- Chair Neunman understood that currently the |egislation

would not inpact Tier | nenbers, because they already
received those benefits. M. Boucher answered in the
affirmative. He explained that the ten-year limtation
woul d apply to Tiers I, II1l, and IV

Co-Chair Neuman surm sed that under existing PERS defined
contribution plan, no person was currently eligible for 100
percent systempaid najor nedical benefits. He remarked
that the draft bill allowed for 100 percent premum for

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



maj or nedical benefits for eligible persons. M. Boucher
replied in the affirmative.

2:02:54 PM

Representative WIlson wondered if a famly would be covered
to 2024, if the incident occurred in 2014. She specifically
wonder ed when the ten years woul d begin.

Ms. Wl kerson replied that the benefit would begin upon the
eligibility of the survivor starting from January 1, 2013
when the event occurred.

JAKE METCALFE, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, PUBLIC SAFETY EMPLOYEES
ASSCCI ATI ON, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), stated that
his organization represented police officers; state
troopers; airport police and fire officers in Fairbanks and
Anchorage; court service officers who policed the court
buil ding; correctional officers in sone nunicipal police
departnents; and deputy fire marshals in the Departnent of
Public Safety (DPS). He stressed that sone enployees in his
organi zation were not state enployees - sone were |ocal
enpl oyees. He stated that he did not have time to fully
study the commttee substitute. He expressed concern wth
the 10-year limt. He felt that the bill was a sinple piece
of legislation that provided nmjor nedical insurance for
the survivors of police and fire fighters killed in the
line of duty. He stressed that the benefit was not the
current medical coverage, rather the benefit that was
received upon retirenent. He stressed that the benefit was
| ess than the policy for a current enployee.

M. Metcalfe stressed that the bill was |limted to peace
officers and fire fighters, because those enployees
protected the people of Alaska and worked in dangerous
conditions. He recalled quote about peace officers and fire
fighters, "Chaos is our normal." He stressed that the
benefit was specific to a unique class of public enployees
whose job required dangerous circunstances where they could
be killed. He shared that 14 other states provided the
benefit, and the mlitary also provided the benefit. The
bill had over whel m ng support from all political
per suasi ons. He shared the forner Gover nor Par nel

expressed support of the legislation. He remarked that Paul
Jenkins wote a colum for the Anchorage Daily News
expressing support for the legislation. He shared that the
Fai rbanks News Mner editorial board wote an editorial

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



urging the legislature to pass the bill. He stated that
Shannyn Moore supported the bill. He announced that Dernot
Cole wote a colum supporting the |[|egislation. He
reiterated that there was a broad spectrum of support
across the state.

2:09:51 PM

M. Metcal fe shared that he provided research regardi ng any
legal issues related to the provisions of the bill. He
stated that no other state had been sued for providing the
benefit. He felt that the bill had mninmal cost. He urged
the commttee to pass the legislation. He felt that nany
people in the state assuned that the benefit was already
provided to the first responders. He did not understand why
there was a limt to ten years. He shared that one office
killed had an infant <child, so that <child would not
continue to have coverage to adulthood. He felt there was a
smal |l cost to covering the famlies of the heroes who gave
their lives protecting the people of Al aska. He reiterated
his support of the bill.

Vice-Chair Saddler wondered if his association every
bargained for the major nedical benefits. M. Metcalfe
asked if Vice-Chair Saddler was referencing the health
insurance in the bill.

Vice-Chair Saddler replied in the affirmative.

M. Metcalfe replied that his association had not attenpted
to negotiate the benefits. He felt that the bargaining
would be difficult, because his association represented
multiple nunicipalities and state enployees. He stated that
t he negotiations would need to occur with each contract. He
stated that bargaining required agreenent from both sides.

He stressed that there was no guarantee in the
negoti ations, and contracts were limted to three years. He
stated that the benefit in the bill would apply to all

enpl oyees within the PERS system He shared that there were
many police departnments in the state that did not have a
union representing them and did not have collective
bargai ning, therefore those police departnents would be
subject to that benefit. He noted that nobst enployers
provi ded health insurance to enployees in order to ensure
healthy workers. He felt that the benefit was recognition
of the work done by peace officers, correctional officers,
and firefighters.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



2:16: 37 PM

Vice-Chair Saddler wondered whether the rmajor nedical
benefit was nore or less valuable than the current
occupational death benefit of between 40 and 50 percent of
sal ary.

M. Metcalfe did not believe a value could be placed on the
difference. He stressed that there were varying benefits
available in the occurrence of a death. He stressed that
there was no nedical insurance for spouses and survivors of
a police officer or fire fighter killed in the line of
duty. He shared that his own children ranged in ages from
l-year-old to 22-years-old. He stressed that his younger
children would need nedical benefits for 20 years. He felt
that the legislation outlined a valuable benefit. He hoped
that the enployer would provide that benefit, should an
officer be killed in the line of duty. He reiterated that
he could not put a value on the benefit.

Representative Guttenberg noted that there were other death
benefits available for state troopers and fire fighters
that could be obtained outside of the collective bargaining
agreenent . He wondered whether the association had
negotiated those benefits. He asked if there were cost
prohi bitive issues.

M. Metcalfe asked for clarification of the question. He
wonder ed whether Representative Guttenberg was asked about
medi cal benefits or general benefits.

Representative GQuttenberg stated that his question referred
to the nedical benefits that the surviving famly would
recei ve

2:19:44 PM

M. Metcalfe answered that he had not |ooked to see if the
benefit was available. He detailed that state troopers were
a part of the Public Safety Enployees' Association Health
Trust. He elaborated that a health benefit was provided
t hrough enpl oyer and enpl oyee contributions. He noted that
not all association nenbers were a part of the health trust
(state enployees were). He reiterated contribution fromthe
enpl oyer and enployee was required for the benefit to be
provided. He stated that w thout an enployer contribution

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



he did not know if the benefit would be available to
associ ation nenbers beyond the ten-year tinme period. He
furthered that because survivors and children were not
enpl oyees of the enployer he believed it would be difficult
for the benefit to be provided.

Representative Gara remarked that M. Metcalfe had received
earlier questions about the inportance of the health
benefit. He asked if M. Mtcalfe believed it would cause
hardship for a famly if a trooper was killed in the line
of duty and the spouse and <children had no health
i nsurance.

Co-Chair Thonpson interjected there was no question about
whet her the scenario would cause a hardship. He questioned
how nmuch it would cost a famly if an infant were to get
| eukema. He stressed the inportance of nmjor nedical
insurance and did not believe it was necessary to debate
its val ue.

Representative Gara agreed that nmjor medical insurance was
inmportant. He noted there had been sone questioning of its
i nportance earlier.

Co- Chai r Thonpson recogni zed Representatives Charisse
MIllett, Paul Seaton, and Liz Vasquez in the room

Co- Chair Thonpson CLOSED public testinony.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that Legislative Legal Services had
notified himthere was a problemin the bill that needed to
be addressed.

2:22: 38 PM
AT EASE

2:46:49 PM
RECONVENED

Co- Chair Thonmpson MOVED t o ADOPT Conceptual Amendnent 1:

Delete Line 17, Page 4, which |limted the dependent
child's benefits to 10 years. By elimnating this,

benefits will extend to the child until they are 19 or
23 (if in college) according to what we have heard
t oday.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Co- Chair Neuman OBJECTED for di scussi on.

Representative Gara requested to be added as a cosponsor to
t he anendnent .

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked for a restatenent of t he
anmendnent .

Co- Chair Thonpson reread the anendnent:

Delete Line 17, Page 4, which |imted the dependent
child's benefits to 10 years. By elimnating this,

benefits will extend to the child until they are 19 or
23 (if in college) according to what we have heard
t oday.

Co-Chair Neuman WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTI ON, Conceptual Amendnment 1 was ADOPTED

2:48: 20 PM

Co- Chair Thonmpson MOVED t o ADOPT Conceptual Amendnent 2:

Create a new section to extend the 10 year limtation
in Section 7, which applies to the Defined
Contribution Plan, to the Defined Benefit Pl an.

Co- Chair Neuman OBJECTED for di scussi on.

Representative Gara asked for verification that w thout the
anendnent state enployees in Tiers IIl and 1V would not
receive the ten-year benefit.

M. Boucher clarified that currently the conmmttee
substitute included a ten-year limtation, which only
applied to Tier 1V. The anmendnent woul d extend the ten-year
limt across all tiers that did not receive systempaid
medi cal .

Co-Chair Thonpson clarified the anendnent addressed the
Defined Benefit Plan. M. Boucher agreed.

Representative Gara asked for verification that w thout the
anmendnent, the benefits for the particular group [Defined
Benefit Plan participants] would be unlimted in tine or
did not exist.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson replied in the negative. He clarified the
current commttee substitute only addressed the Defined
Contribution Plan. The anmendnment would also include the
Defined Benefit Plan, which had been left out of the
original |egislation.

Co-Chair Neuman WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTI ON, Conceptual Amendnent 2 was ADOPTED

2:50: 31 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent 1, 29-GH2430\H. 3
(Wal | ace/ Wayne, 6/18/16) (copy on file):

Page 5, line 24, through page 6, line 1
Delete all material .

Renunber the follow ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 6, line 13:
Del ete "Sections 1-13"
| nsert "Sections 1 - 12"

Page 6, line 14:
Del ete "Section 14"
| nsert "Section 13"

Page 6, line 15:
Del ete "sec. 16"
| nsert "sec. 15"

Co- Chair Neuman OBJECTED for di scussi on.

Co- Chair Thonpson explained the amendnent, which had been
brought forward by DOL, renoved Section 12. He explained
the section had been a remmant from a previous version of
HB 66 [2015 Ilegislation related to insurance for the
dependents of deceased fire and police officers], which had
recently been identified for renoval.

Ms. W I kerson addressed the anendnent. She explained that
in DOL's review, it had identified Section 12 as a remant
of a prior bill version. The section contained a provision
that had been renoved due to redundancy. However, in
retrospect, DOL had determ ned the provision would not be
redundant, but it actually perfornmed an essential function

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



in maintaining the integrity of the entire plan. Therefore,
t he departnent requested the renoval of Section 12.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked for verification that the section
(page 5, line 24 through page 6, line 1) needed to remain
inthe bill, but it had not been in previous bill versions.

Ms. WIlkerson replied that she was referring to the
provi si on I n Section 12, page 5, l'ine 29 "[OR
29.35.892(e)]," which would be renoved. She explained DOL
did not want to renove the |anguage. She el aborated that
Section 12 had no further purpose; therefore DOL asked for
t he del etion of the section.

Representative GQuttenberg asked if the language "OR' in the
provision was nerely the word "or." M. WIkerson replied
in the affirmative.

Representative Gara asked for verification that the
departnment was not proposing to delete the whole AS
39.35.894 (Section 12). He surmsed Anmendnent 1 would
delete the deletion of "[OR 29.35.892(e)]." M. WIKkerson
replied in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Saddler believed the anendnment deleted all of
Section 12. M. Boucher replied in the affirmative.

2:54: 32 PM

Ms. W kerson replied that "the purpose of Section 12 was
that change."” Therefore, it had been determned that the
section was no | onger needed.

Co-Chair Neuman WTHDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTI ON, Anmendnment 1 was ADOPTED

2:55: 08 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 2, 29-GH2430\H. 4
(Wal | ace/ Wayne, 6/18/16):

Page 4, line 2:
Del ete", "
| nsert "and"

Co- Chair Neuman OBJECTED for di scussi on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson expl ai ned the anmendnent had been brought
forward by DO.. He explained that the word "and" had been
removed, which resulted in potential confusion about the
eligibility requirements for a surviving spouse to receive
a death benefit. Amendment 2 would insert the word "and"
back in.

Ms. W/ kerson relayed DOL recommended reinserting the word
"and" and renoving the conmma. She detailed that the
deceased nenber would have to be a peace officer or
firefighter and the surviving spouse would have to be
eligible to receive the death benefit. The deletion of the
word "and" would add confusion to the reader about whether
the two things had to happen for a person to becone
eligible for the benefit.

Co-Chair Neuman W THDREW his OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTI ON, Amendnment 2 was ADOPTED

2:57: 01 PM

Co-Chair Neuman MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 3, 29-GH2430\H. 1
(Wal | ace/ Wayne, 6/17/16) (copy on file):

Page 1, line 3:
Del ete "peace officers and firefighters”
Insert "officers of the Al aska state troopers”

Page 2, line 25:
Del ete "peace officers or firefighters”
Insert "officers of the Al aska state troopers”

Page 4, line 2:
Del ete "a peace officer or firefighter”
Insert "an officer of the Al aska state troopers”

Page 4, line 5:
Del ete "a peace officer or firefighter”
Insert "an officer of the Al aska state troopers”

Representative Gara OBJECTED for discussion.

Co- Chair Neunman expl ai ned the anendnent tightened |anguage
from peace officers and firefighters - which could
enconpass firefighters, ai rport security of ficers,
university police officers, village public safety officers
(VPSO), and Department of Transportation and Public

House Fi nance Conmmittee 21 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Facilities conmercial and inspection officers - to officers
of the Alaska State Troopers. He believed the entire topic
had arisen because of +the desire to provide survivor
benefits to famlies of Alaska State Troopers who had died
while in the line of duty. He stated it was a very popul ar
offer to the individuals. He believed Al aska State Troopers
are heroes, who are willing to put their lives on the I|ine,
which he believed was the reason there were only 400
troopers. He could understand the reason for trying to
assist their famlies; however, he did not believe the
individuals would be getting benefits if they were not
governnent or state enployees. He was not aware of any
other private industry offering the benefits unless it had
been negotiated into a salary or benefits package. He
stressed the state had a $3 billion deficit. He noted the

commttee continued to hear the bill would not cost "that
much"; however, budget itens added up, which could result
in a $4 billion budget. He was very concerned about the

issue. He continued that it went back to trying to fight
coverage for troopers.

Co-Chair Neuman continued to address the anendnent. He
believed firefighters, volunteer firefighters, and police

officers in all of the state's nmunicipalities would be
covered under the legislation. He reasoned that one way or
anot her soneone had to pay for the bill. Currently there

were discussions in the |egislature about whether the state
could afford the 12.56 percent cap on the Teachers’
Retirement System (TRS) and the 22 percent cap in
muni ci palities. He relayed the bill would continue to add
to the burden of the state; he suspected the discussions
were forthcomng. He stated the cost was "upwards of

another $200 million for those other benefits - not just
these benefits here - to the state because we did tap that
| believe in 2008." He believed the bill reflected an

unfunded mandate to municipalities. He understood that a
docurment from Legislative Legal Services (provided as
backup to the anendnent) specified the anmendnent may be
unconstitutional. He had spoken to the Departnent of
Adm nistration (DOA) and relayed intent to ask additional
guestions. He stated M. Boucher had conveyed the anendnent
would be an admnistrative issue from the departnent's
perspective. He nentioned the Defined Benefit and Defined
Contribution Plans and Tiers I, II, 111, and 1V. He
specified that admnistratively the departnment would need
to have a carve-out for Al aska State Troopers. He asked if
that was the departnent's biggest issue with the anendnent.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 22 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



M. Boucher answered that from the perspective of the
retirement system he did not believe it was a
constitutional issue. He deferred to DO. pertaining to
constitutionality. He explained the anmendnment would create
a carve-out of a benefit for a subset of the existing
police/fire group, which would be a precedent setting
event. He noted that it had not been done previously
t hroughout the history of PERS. He did not want to di scount
the event because it would require the state to set
separate enployer rates for the State of Alaska or
enployers with Alaska State Troopers versus nmunicipality
enpl oyers or other entities that did not participate in
recei ving the benefit.

3:02: 06 PM

Co-Chair Neuman addressed DOL and relayed M. Boucher's
concerns about the adm nistrative aspects of the anmendnent.
He asked if DOL believed there was a high risk of
muni ci palities suing the state if the |egislature decided
to offer nore benefits to Alaska State Troopers, but not to
everyone.

CORI M LLS, ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
responded that in general DOL agreed with the analysis by
Legislative Legal Services. She detailed when it canme to
equal protection, it was inpossible to know when soneone
woul d sue. She could not specify the risk of a lawsuit. She
rel ayed the issue was nore of an economc interest and DOL
did not see the amendnent as raising significant |egal
concerns from an equal protection perspective; however, the
specific class had been sel ected because peace officers and
firefighters were already set out as a category wthin
PERS. She furthered the category had existed for a Ilong
time; therefore, there was less risk with the current
cat egori es.

Co-Chair Neuman surm sed DOL believed there could be issues
with law, but it did not see a significant risk to the
state. Ms. MIIls answered in the affirnmati ve.

Co- Chair Thonpson observed that the anendnent would renove
firefighters from the bill. He deduced the airport fire
departnments entering a burning passenger plane to save
lives would not be covered.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Ms. MIls replied that the Anmendnent 3 would limt the
benefit to state troopers.

Representative Gara spoke in opposition to the anendnent.

He noted the constitutional 1issue was interesting and
debatable, but it was not his present concern. He was
concerned the anendnent defeated the intent of the bill. He
specified the bill aimed to grant health coverage to

surviving children and spouses of people who took dangerous
jobs that involved the clear risk of death. He stressed the
i ndi viduals included firefighters, police, and troopers. He
did not see a distinction between a trooper (who should
receive the benefit) and a police officer or firefighter
who would not get the benefit under the anmendnent. Al of
t he individuals had signed on for very dangerous jobs.

3: 05: 49 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked what the population of the covered
menbers was likely to be if the amendnent passed. He asked
if 400 was accurate. M. Boucher replied that 400 was a
reasonable estimate, but he would have to follow up wth
exact nunbers.

Vice-Chair Saddler wondered if a group like the Public
Saf ety Enpl oyees' Association may sue.

Co- Chair Thonpson stated did not want to speculate on
whet her a specific group m ght sue the state.

Vice-Chair Saddler stated that it was a question about
where to draw the Iine. He remarked the amendnment sought to
draw the line at one point, whereas the bill sought to draw
the line at a far different point. He reasoned it was fair
to consider that any state enployee who may be killed in
the line of duty had no |ess needy dependents or survivors
than a public safety officer.

Representative WIlson stated the anmendnent would not
include fire service areas or firefighters (who were
contractors) or VPSOCs. She stated it made the bil

difficult. She agreed that the state needed to protect
individuals in the Iline of fire for any reason. She
referred to wuniversity police and fire and students
(i ndividuals who were not full-tinme enployees); and airport
enpl oyees. She asked how many firefighters in the state

House Fi nance Conmmittee 24 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



woul d be covered under the bill. She assuned the nunerous
seasonal firefighters would not be covered.

M. Boucher responded that there were 97 firefighters; the
t ot al covered popul ation under the legislation was
approximately 3,600. The total could be divided between
peace officers and firefighters; of the 3,600 slightly
under 900 were in the firefighter category (roughly one-
gquarter of the total).

3:08:44 PM

Representative WIson asked if corrections officers were
included in the legislation. She asked for the definition.
She renmarked the conversation kept referring to peace
officers and firefighters; however, the definition for
peace officers enconpassed nmuch nore than police.

M. Boucher agreed. He consulted his notes.

Co- Chair Thonmpson noted that Senator Anna MacKi nnon had
j oi ned the audi ence.

M. Boucher pointed to the definition in AS 39.35.680,
which included police, chief of police, regional public
safety of ficers, correctional of ficers, correctional
superintendents, probation officers, firefighters, and fire
chi ef s.

Representative WIson wanted to nmake sure that they were
not only talking about police and firefighters. She
reiterated that peace officers included nunerous groups.
She wanted to protect individuals in the line of duty. She
reasoned a DOT officer who got run over was in the |line of
duty. She questioned whether the group in the bill should
be narrowed further or maintained at the bill's current
size. She wondered if the right thing to do was to offer
the benefit to anyone working for the state; the dependents
of the individuals would also have the sane issue where
their insurance would be termnated [if the state enployee
was killed on the job].

3:11: 04 PM

Representative Edgnon  was havi ng trouble wth t he
anendnent. He spoke to the entire intent of the bill, which
was to provide a benefit to the individuals who put

House Fi nance Conmmittee 25 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



thenselves in harms way and may be killed. He reasoned
that duty was not restricted to state troopers. He wei ghed
the issue with the bill's additional cost and referred to a
roster of state enployees who had been killed in the line
of duty, which represented a small nunber relative to the
state's 25,000 or so state enployees. He stated that
thankfully it would stay the sane going forward. He spoke
to what he believed was the right thing conpared to the
potential incurred cost. He furthered that he did not know
that the additional cost would be prohibitively expensive
under the bill's present structure. He was struggling with
the idea of Iimting the benefit to state troopers.

Representative Gattis wanted to be sure about how the bil
and anendnent may affect her nunicipality. She asked if the
bill financially inpacted nmunicipalities. She also wondered
whet her t he anmendnment woul d financially I npact
muni ci palities. She reasoned the amendnment woul d affect the
Wasilla Police Departnent.

M. Boucher referred to page 7 of a PowerPoint presentation
titled "Alaska Departnent of Admnistration Departnent
Overview' dated June 14, 2016 (copy on file). He detailed
that as the bill was currently constructed, DOA projected
the cost to go to the state because it would increase the
liability of enployers, but currently enployer liability
was capped at 22 percent. Therefore, the bill would
increase the state assistance paynent it was statutorily
obligated to pay for costs above 22 percent for PERS. He
furthered that when the rates were built there was
essentially a rate paid by the enployer up to the 22
percent cap. The bill would increase the base rate and in
the absence of a cap it could increase an individual
enpl oyer rate with peace or firefighter enpl oyees.

Representative Gattis asked if the bill would increase the
rate for the Wasilla Police Departnent.

M. Boucher responded that the Wasilla Police Departnent
woul d continue to only pay 22 percent on its enployees. He
el aborated that if the cap was renobved or the rate
decreased bel ow 22 percent, all of the enployers with peace
and fire officers would be contributing to the benefit
versus those who were not. According to his records, the
Cty of Wasilla had approximately 27 peace officers who
were nenbers of PERS. He noted there nmay be other peace
officers who were not nenbers of PERS. He el aborated that

House Fi nance Conmmittee 26 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



wi thout a 22 percent cap, enployers of peace and fire
enpl oyees woul d be contributing to the benefit.

3:16:41 PM

Representative Gattis wanted to nmake sure the legislature
was not increasing rates w thout municipalities' know edge.
She asked how the amendnent woul d inpact nunicipalities.

M . Boucher understood the anendnent's purpose would be to
l[imt the benefit solely to individuals enployed as Al aska
State Troopers. The dynami c he had spoken about would limt
the rate increase to the State of Alaska. Currently al
peace and fire rates for all enployers were equal; the
officers all fell within the sane pool. The anendnent woul d
set a new precedent that the state could provide a
different benefit under PERS. The change would require
adm nistrative support - the payroll for the particular
enpl oyers would be different in the long-term due to the
different "benefit suite." He was concerned about setting
that precedent. He detailed in the future an enpl oyer could
argue for another unique structure. He continued that over
time enployers could be divided into separate benefit pools
instead of maintaining a pool that was sonewhat ubi quitous
systemw de. He added there were already different tiers
with plenty of conplexity. He was concerned about opening
the door to additional conplexity.

3:19: 05 PM

Co-Chair Thonpson spoke to his involvenent in negotiated
police in fire contracts (which included wages and the
enpl oyee's insurance contribution rate) as a forner mayor.
He asked if it was possible for nmunicipalities to negotiate
survivor benefits for enployees outside the scope of the
| egi slation. He surm sed nmunicipalities could choose to pay
for the benefits at the local level (if the anendnent
passed) .

M. Boucher responded in the affirmative. He noted he did
not have experience at the nmunicipality level. He added the
only issue that could arise was related to current PERS
enpl oyees who my not be represented by collective
bargaining or may not have the particular arrangenent
commttee nenbers were famliar wth in their politica

subdi vision. He specified that enployers could provide the
benefit if they chose.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 27 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



3:20: 25 PM

Representative Pruitt believed the intent of the anmendnent
was to cover state troopers. He referred to historical
information provided by DOA showing that firefighters
should fall wunder the Departnent of Natural Resources
(DNR); there had been three enployee deaths under DNR - the
nmost recent being in 1993. He added he did not know whet her
firefighters had been anbng the deceased. He reasoned tine
had passed since a firefighter had potentially passed away.
He believed the anendnent's intent was for the state to
take care of its enployees and a nmunicipality could decide
to extend the benefit to additional enployees (e.g. the
Anchorage Police or Fire Departnents) and would therefore
be responsible for paying the cost. He asked if the
amendnent would allow for a local nunicipality to pay for
the benefit or whether the state would still have
liability.

M. Boucher agreed with Representative Pruitt about the
anendnent's intent to not have nunicipal or non-state
enpl oyers contribute. He explained it would depend on how a
muni ci pality proposed to deliver the benefit structure. He
provided a hypothetical scenario where a group of
muni cipalities cane to the legislature in the comng year
specifying they would like to deliver the benefits through
PERS just |like the state did for the troopers. He detailed
that if a 22 percent cap was in place, the municipalities
woul d essentially be allowed to provide the benefit at no
additional cost to them He agreed wth Representative
Pruitt's prem se, provided the <conmttee change the
delivery nmethod of the benefit from a retirement system
contri bution.

Representative Pruitt surmsed if a nmunicipality decided it
wanted to offer the benefit under PERS and the |egislature
passed legislation to that effect, the bill would need to
include a provision specifying the nunicipality would be
responsible for the entire cost. He elaborated the state
woul d only be responsible for the cost up to 22 percent. He
construed if the bill passed and sonething happened to a
| ocal police officer before the |egislature reconvened the
followng session and a nmunicipality chose to offer
benefits independently outside of PERS, the cost would rest
entirely on the nunicipality. He asked about the accuracy
of his statenents.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 28 06/18/16 1:12 P. M



M. Boucher agreed. He furthered that as long as a
muni ci pality's insurance delivery system was not PERS, the
muni ci pality or political subdivision would bear the cost
in full.

3:25:41 PM

Representati ve Pruitt reiterated t hat unl ess t he
| egislature nade a statute change, nunicipalities would
have the opportunity to offer the benefits outside PERS and
woul d bear the entire cost. He wanted to ensure the state
woul d not be taking on the cost. He concluded the state
woul d bear the burden of the costs if the legislature
passed a different statute during the next session to
i nclude the additional enployees under PERS

Representative Gara expressed confusion about the issue. He
asked if an Anchorage police officer killed in the line of
duty would receive the benefits under the current
| egislation. M. Boucher answered in the affirmative, as
| ong as the individual was covered under PERS

Representative Gara questioned why an Anchorage police
of ficer would not be under PERS

M. Boucher responded that in his experience, individua
participation agreenents were different for nunicipalities.
Municipalities choose who would be covered; there nay be
individuals within the police departnent the municipality
may have decided to not cover (e.g. a dispatcher). He
underscored that in order to receive the benefit there had
to be a connection to PERS

Representative Gara restated his understanding that if a
police officer was killed in the line of duty they would
receive the benefits wunder the current |legislation. He
asked for verification that the state would pay 78 percent
of the cost and the municipality would pay 22 percent.

M. Boucher explained that the 22 percent cap pertained to
t he ongoi ng personal services cost built in for individuals
for PERS. The state paid the actual rate above 22 percent
in its annual paynment; it was nowhere near an additional 78
percent. Under the legislation, the funds would ultimately
be paid fromthe retirenent health trust.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 29 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



3:29:16 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er understood the conplexity and chall enge
related to accounting. However, he did not see the
potential accounting burden as a conpelling enough argunent
to prevent carving out peace officers and firefighters from
the legislation. He believed the state was supposed to be
enhancing the personnel accounting system and he hoped it
had the capability to nake the calculations. He stated the
amendnent addressed where the line would be drawn. He
continued if the legislature was wlling to exclude sone
PERS enpl oyees from the benefit he did not see a conpelling
argunent that others could not be excluded. He believed
"hammering it out nore closely to cover troopers and not
firefighters seens to be legitimate and in keeping with the
spirit of this bill." He stated the departnent had
testified there were occupational death benefits for all
PERS enpl oyees. He reasoned carving the benefit in the bil
out for specific enployees would not |eave firefighters and
others bereft of other benefits. He believed if there was
an increase in costs it would be for PERS enployees that
woul d be borne by the state because it had agreed to take
on the expense above 22 percent of the personnel cost. He
concluded if the bill pushed the cost up, the state would
pay the expense. He wondered if the cost would be covered
fromthe General Fund or the retirenment trust.

M. Boucher replied that the fiscal note proposed a
projected change in the annual state assistance paynent,
which was a direct paynent by the state to the retirenent
trust. Generally the paynent had cone from the General
Fund; however, in the current iteration of the budget a
different fund source had been used in addition to genera
f unds.

Vice-Chair Saddler clarified that ultinmately the pockets
woul d be the state CGeneral Fund via the retirenment or state
assistance funds. He was inclined to support the anendnent
due to the substantial budget challenges. He reasoned that
everything the state paid for was good for some people, but
it "came back to roost” when it cane tine to pay for the
services. He referred to his earlier question about whether
someone would potentially sue the state over t he
differential treatnment of firefighters and state troopers.
He concluded if the anmendnent passed they would find out if
t he distinction was all owabl e.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 30 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



3:32: 09 PM

Representative WIson asked for verification that if the
amendnent passed there was nothing preventing the
muni ci palities from deciding how to «cover their own
enpl oyees.

M. Boucher was not aware of any barriers nunicipalities
would have if they chose to try to offer the benefit to
their peace officers, firefighters, or another group.

Representative WIson asked for verification there was
not hi ng stopping the legislature from changing statute and
getting out of the PERS and TRS nmunicipalities. She
believed the legislature could elect to stop pitching in
noney for the nunicipalities.

M. Boucher asked if Representative WIlson was referring to
t he state assistance paynent.

Representative WIlson replied in the affirmative. M.
Boucher answered it was a decision made by the |egislature
on an annual basis.

Representative W]Ison supported Anendnent 3. She surm sed
that w thout the anendnment the bill would act as another
unfunded cost. She remarked that the City of North Pole had
police and firefighters on a very |imted budget. She could
not currently put additional pressure on the city and would
prefer to leave it up to the city to decide.

M. Boucher elucidated there was currently a statutory
requi renent for the legislature to fund above 22 percent.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked for wverification the anmendnent
woul d not change the requirenment. M. Boucher replied in
the affirmative. He detailed no one was changing the
existing statutory requirenment for the legislature to fund
t he amount [above 22 percent].

Representative WIlson clarified that the legislature could
elect to change the statutory requirenent. She remarked a
bill had been proposed earlier in session, which had | ooked
at the possibility. She continued that as the state's
deficit continued, the Ilegislature would be considering
numer ous i deas. She understood that at the current tine the
bill may not be increasing costs for municipalities, but in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 31 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



the future it could be. She reasoned it was a step the
muni ci palities could take versus having the |egislature
force sonething on them

3:34: 54 PM

Co- Chair Thonpson |iked the idea. However, he was concerned
about the idea of firefighters losing their |ives when
running onto a burning airplane to save |ives. He

guestioned not providing the benefits to individuals doing
their job to save lives.

Representative Pruitt appreciated the Co-Chair Thonpson's
coments. He discussed that the |egislature could decide to
take care of state enployees and |eave the renmining
decision up to nunicipalities. He addressed the anendnent
and wondered if instead of carving out firefighters and
others whether it was possible to apply the benefits to
state enployees, while leaving the decision to cover
muni ci pal enployees wup to the nunicipalities. It was
slightly different than the proposed anendnent, but he
wondered it would help wth concerns about covering
enpl oyees within the state's purview.

3:36:48 PM

Co- Chair Neuman provided w ap-up on Amendnent 3. He rel ayed
he was not approaching the issue "as a heartless" person
who wanted to deny coverage for people who die in the line
of duty working for the state or nmunicipalities. He knew
muni ci pal and state police officers were aware their jobs
were very dangerous. He believed the state did its best to
provide the best equipnment and training possible. He
relayed that his first question to state troopers when
doing a ride-along was about whether they felt safe, had
the right training, sufficient backup, and the right
equi pnent; the answer had never been "no." He commented on
the type of vehicles they used.

Co-Chair Neuman stressed the issue was about the cost of
the tens of thousands of expenditures the state had. He
relayed the state had been adding small expenditures over
50 years, which added up and had resulted in a large
budget. He detailed the budget had beconme larger in the
past ten years during a period of surpluses. He reasoned it
was much easier to pass a bill with a fiscal note during
good financial times. He believed discussion on the current

House Fi nance Conmmittee 32 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



concept was to ensure the state provided coverage for
Al aska State Troopers who lost their lives in the line of
duty. He was trying to limt the focus to state troopers

He remar ked t he costs had gr own to enconpass
muni ci palities, firefighters, police officers, and other.
He wunderscored the legislature had already considered
legislation on the state's budget during the current
session; it had covered a significant amount of the non-
formula General Fund expenditures for day-to-day state
operations. He believed the legislature had cut those
services to the point where it had |ooked at taking cable
television out of the Al aska Pioneer Hones because it did
not believe the state could afford the $24,000 or $28, 000.
He noted he did not know what el se an 80-year-old woul d do,
but the discussions had been necessary [given the state's
deficit]. He thought the cut may have been nade and the
| egislature had asked the Alaska Mental Health Trust
Aut hority (AVMHTA) to help with funding.

Co-Chair Neuman reiterated that costs continued to grow
annual ly. He enphasi zed that the cost of nedical and health
insurance killing the state. He questioned how nmany tines
individuals had heard the state's retirement system was
upsi de down. He underscored there was a huge debt. He asked
whet her the state could afford to add additional costs to
the budget. He was committed to providing coverage for
state troopers. He detailed nunicipalities had the option
to purchase their own insurance, which was not very
expensive. He believed sonme of the costs were an additional
$4 or $5 on an insurance plan. He renmarked |egislation had
been introduced related to formula undesignated general
funds, which was basically Medicaid, PERS, and TRS. He
continued the state was covering upwards of $200 mllion.
He suspected the |egislature would need to consi der whet her
the caps could be nmaintained at their current level. He
referred to the state's $3 billion deficit. He surm sed the
funding was rmunicipal revenue sharing in its own way; the
action had been inplenented in 2008 when the price of oil
had been increasing and the state had been able to put
billions of dollars into savings. He underscored that the
state was no longer in that position. He renmarked that
commttee nenbers had participated in mny difficult
di scussions on difficult legislation and the associated
costs. He remarked it would be nice to have additional
money for departnents. He stressed that nore was being
added to the budget than the state could afford.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 33 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Co- Chair Neuman enphasized the legislation would add nore
to the cost of the state. He referenced the testinony from
the departnents on constitutional issues, which he believed
had been flushed out. He added the chances of the state
getting sued were probably small. He reasoned that another
union could say it also wanted the benefits given to
troopers, which could potentially result in a loss of the
benefit for troopers. H's concern was about the state's
budget. He questioned whether the $200,000 would be taken
away fromthe troopers the com ng year when the |egislature
reduced the budget. He stressed he had denied requests for
additional funds fromthe nunicipalities and others for the
past two years. He provided additional exanples about
denying funding requests. He elaborated the |egislature was
trying to find noney for other things in dire need of
funds. For exanple, he did not believe there was any noney
included in the budget for the state's deferred maintenance
needs on its facilities. He stressed the bill would provide
coverage for troopers, which was the original intent. He
referred to requests to provide coverage for troopers from
former Governor Parnell and others. He understood there
were state firefighters. He would accept Representative
Pruitt's proposal as a friendly anendnent; however, he
remarked the state could not afford an additional burden.
He also stated that the issue could be revisited and noney
could always be added later. He reiterated the noney had to
come from sonmewhere and presently it would have to cone
from savings. He added the governor wanted to spend the
Per manent Fund to cover costs.

3:45:14 PM

Co- Chair Neuman el aborated that the public had vocalized it
did not want to see noney taken from the Permanent Fund. He
continued that the public had recommended cutting the cost
of state governnment. He did not believe the cost of
covering troopers would be significant.

Representative WIson requested an "at ease."

3:45:58 PM
AT EASE

4:12: 32 PM
RECONVENED

House Fi nance Conmmittee 34 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson indicated that the conmttee had been
consi dering Arendnent 3.

4:12: 54 PM
AT EASE

4:13:21 PM
RECONVENED

Representative Wl son MOVED t o AMEND Armendnent 3.
Co- Chair Thonpson OBJECTED for di scussion.

Representative WIson proposed changing the Anmendnent 3
| anguage to "peace officers or firefighters enployed by the
state” instead of [offering the benefit to] Al aska State
Troopers only.

Representative Edgnon spoke in opposition to the origina
Amendnment 3 and to the proposed anended form He noted
there had been a | engthy discussion during the recent break
about the underlying anendnent. He believed the anendnent
woul d open a Pandora's Box with the entire PERS system He
believed the anendnent further exposed the bill to a
chal l enge by a great many participants across the state. He
feared that if the commttee veered from the underlying
bill it would endanger the very benefits the commttee was
trying to provide to the state troopers.

Co- Chair Neuman viewed the anmendnent as friendly. He noted
the state canme up against lawsuits daily. He remarked the
| egal system process was lengthy and if problens arose he
believed there would be tine to work them out. He continued
to express concern about additional costs to the state.

4:15:42 PM

Representative Gara was unclear what the anendnment to
Amendnment 3 would do. He thought it was intended to cover
only state enployed troopers and firefighters.

Representative WIson answered it would also include peace
of ficers enployed by the state. Additionally, the anendnent
woul d nean the state would not be nmaking the decision [to
cover additional enployees] for nunicipalities.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 35 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Representative Gara spoke in opposition to the anendnent to
Amendnment 3. He saw no distinction between a nmunicipal
firefighter or police officer killed in the line of duty
and a state enpl oyee.

Representative Pruitt asked the departnent why it would be
potentially problematic to try to carve out state enpl oyees
fromcity enpl oyees.

Ms. MIls replied that PERS was a cost-share system She
detailed nunicipalities were effectively a pool and each
contributed the sane rate/anount of noney. She believed the
current system had been created in 2008. She addressed
carving out the state enployees. She specified peace
officers and firefighters had always been in place as a
category and all others had been in place as a separate
category. The anmendnent to Anendnent 3 proposed to add the
state as yet another category of benefits and plans, which
woul d have to be calculated. The change would nean the
cost-share where all peace officer and firefighters paid
in, would no |onger work. The change would nean
fundanmental ly nodify the way the retirenent system worked.

Representative Pruitt surmsed the issue revolved around
the state's decision to cover everything in PERS. He
reasoned the state and nunicipalities could be separated in
just about everything; however, the "hiccup" arose because
both were included in PERS. He detailed that nunicipalities
could do sonething on their own (separate from PERS), but
given the PERS structure, there was no differentiation
between the state and nunicipalities in that specific area.

Ms. MII responded in the affirmative. The bill dealt wth
PERS, which was the reason it was difficult to carve out
different groups. She detailed if a different insurance or
benefit was offered in another manner there may be other
options where distinguishing between the mnunicipalities and
the state woul d be easier.

4:19:46 PM

Representative Pruitt surmsed the state could carve out
the state [enployees] if a new program was created outside
of PERS. He reiterated his understanding that the chall enge
lay with the fact the bill specifically dealt with PERS

House Fi nance Conmmittee 36 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Ms. MIls agreed. She noted there was a possibility
numerous alternatives existed, but they would have to be
eval uated. She restated PERS caused the issues [in relation
to the anendnent to Anendnent 3].

Representative Minoz remarked that for the specific
category of enployees, the enployee and enployer in PERS
were paying the sane rate. She reasoned if state troopers
were carved out of the category it would be necessary to
create a different rate structure for those enployees
because it would include an additional benefit that other
enpl oyees did not have. She asked for the accuracy of her
st atenment s.

M. Boucher agreed. He detailed that statutes guided the
cost-share system and the admnistration was reluctant to
provide a custom zed benefit for a specific group that was
not within the existing categories.

4:21:19 PM

Vice-Chair Saddl er agreed with the intent of the anendnent
to Amendnent 3, but wanted to ensure he understood it. He
surm sed that because PERS was a cost-sharing program
between nunicipal and state governnents, the anendnent
would |ower the overall cost of the bill, but it would
require nunicipalities and the state to share the cost and
only state enployees would receive the benefit.

M. Boucher responded that once the state went down the
road of providing a custom benefit for a specific group
the state would be conpelled to have a different rate
structure, which would break down the cost-share principal
He observed the policy direction the commttee seened to be
headi ng towards was "you should pay for what benefits you
receive." He explained that wthin PERS, the benefits were
the same across the board in order for rates to be
ubiquitous no matter what enployer an enployee had. He
concluded the system would be fundanentally changed if a
different direction was taken.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler spoke to the goal of ensuring people
paid for the benefits they received. He observed that as
the current system stood, the state was actually paying for
benefits or costs that nunicipalities should rightly pay
(because the state had agreed to pay all costs above 22

House Fi nance Conmmittee 37 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



percent). He reasoned the current system was not perfectly
equal .

Co-Chair Thonmpson MAINTAINED his OBJECTION to AMEND
Amendnent 3.

A roll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Saddl er, W/Ison, Neuman

OPPCSED: Edgnon, Gara, Quttenberg, Kawasaki, Minoz, Pruitt,
Gattis, Thonpson

The MOTION to anmend Anendnent 3 FAILED (3/8).

Co- Chair Thonpson returned to Anendnent 3.

Representative Gara MAI NTAI NED his OBJECTI ON

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

IN FAVOR: W/ son, Gattis, Saddler, Neuman, Thonpson
OPPCSED: Edgnon, Gara, CGuttenberg, Kawasaki, Minoz, Pruitt

The MOTI ON to adopt Anendnent 3 FAILED (5/6).

4:25:10 PM

Representative Kawasaki MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 4, 29-
GH2430\H. 2 (Wl | ace/ Wayne, 6/18/16):

Page 1, following line 4:

Insert a new bill section to read:

"* Section 1. The wuncodified law of the State of
Al aska i s anmended by adding a new section to read:

LEG SLATI VE | NTENT. It S t he i nt ent of t he
| egislature to consider nethods and nmechanisns to
provi de paynent of death benefits to the surviving
spouses, desi gnat ed beneficiari es, chi |l dren, or
parents  of village public safety officers and
volunteer firefighters who die during the perfornmance
of duties."

Page 1, line 5:

Del ete "Section 1"
| nsert "Sec. 2"

House Fi nance Conmmittee 38 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 6, line 13:
Del ete "Sections 1-13"
| nsert "Sections 2-14"

Page 6, line 14:
Del ete "Section 14"
| nsert "Section 15"

Page 6, line 15:
Del ete "sec. 16"
| nsert "sec. 17"

Co- Chair Thonpson OBJECTED for discussion.

Representative Kawasaki explained the anendnent. He
believed it had been clearly expressed that people serving
in a capacity as |aw enforcenment and working side-by-side
with |aw enforcenent officers (e.g. VPSCs, vol unt eer
firefighters) were subject to the same dangers as troopers
and PERS firefighters and public safety enployees. He
detail ed that because the bill dealt specifically with PERS
enpl oyees, he believed it was necessary to reconmend or for
the legislature to consider, some sort of parity when
provi di ng the benefits outside of PERS.

Co- Chair Thonpson thought the amendnent got carried away.
He observed it pertained to surviving spouses, designated
beneficiaries, parents, VPSOs, and volunteer firefighters

He explained the individuals were not under PERS and there
was no instrument to do so. He thought the anmendnent shoul d
be researched and presented as a separate bill in the next
sessi on.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er opposed the anendnent. He stated there
were already nethods and nmechanisns for receiving the
benefit. He detail ed people could purchase insurance at a
low cost. He reasoned there were existing nechanisns in
place if the goal was to conserve resources and provide
benefits for high-risk enployees. He agreed that including
desi gnated beneficiaries, parents, and children was too
expansive. He facetiously asked about including the benefit
to nei ghbors and cl ose friends.

4:27:12 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 39 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Representative Guttenberg believed it was problematic there
was not a coordinated effort to look at the issue. He
di scussed that one village organization or volunteer fire
department may offer the benefit; however, the nost
advant ageous way to provide insurance was through a pooling
met hod. The anendnent did not propose anything other than
intent to look at different options and at the big picture.
He el aborated that villages, local fire departnents, and
vol unteer organizations did not have the ability to have a
di scussion focused on the big picture. He stressed that
only the state had the ability to look at the big picture
and to bring everyone in.

Representative WIson commented there was no way for the
anmendnent to fit under the bill or in PERS.

M. Boucher replied in the affirmative.

Representati ve W son expressed opposi tion to t he
anendnent. She believed the concept was a good idea, but
not under the current |egislation.

Co- Chair Thonpson MAI NTAI NED his OBJECTION to Amendnent 4.
Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Edgnon, Gara, Quttenberg, Kawasak

OPPOSED: Gattis, Miunoz, Pruitt, Saddler, WIson, Neuman,
Thonpson

The MOTION to adopt Anendnent 4 FAILED (4/7).

4:29:11 PM

Co- Chair Neunman MOVED to REPORT CSHB 4002(FIN) as anended
out of commttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanying fiscal notes. Authorization was given to
Legislative Legal Services to nmake any necessary technica
or conform ng anendnents. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

CSHB 4002(FIN) was REPORTED out of commttee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with one new forthcom ng fiscal
i npact note from the Departnent of Admi nistration and one
previously published zero fiscal note: FN1 (ADM .

House Fi nance Conmmittee 40 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



Co- Chair Thonpson recessed the neeting to a call of the
chair [note: the neeting never reconvened].

#
ADJ OURNVENT

4:29:58 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 4:29 p. m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 41 06/ 18/ 16 1:12 P. M



